ARCHIVED - Archiving Content

Archived Content

Information identified as archived is provided for reference, research or recordkeeping purposes. It is not subject to the Government of Canada Web Standards and has not been altered or updated since it was archived. Please contact us to request a format other than those available.

ARCHIVÉE - Contenu archivé

Contenu archivé

L'information dont il est indiqué qu'elle est archivée est fournie à des fins de référence, de recherche ou de tenue de documents. Elle n'est pas assujettie aux normes Web du gouvernement du Canada et elle n'a pas été modifiée ou mise à jour depuis son archivage. Pour obtenir cette information dans un autre format, veuillez communiquer avec nous.

This document is archival in nature and is intended for those who wish to consult archival documents made available from the collection of Public Safety Canada.

Some of these documents are available in only one official language. Translation, to be provided by Public Safety Canada, is available upon request.

Le présent document a une valeur archivistique et fait partie des documents d'archives rendus disponibles par Sécurité publique Canada à ceux qui souhaitent consulter ces documents issus de sa collection.

Certains de ces documents ne sont disponibles que dans une langue officielle. Sécurité publique Canada fournira une traduction sur demande.



Victim Services in Canada: National, Provincial and Territorial Fact Sheets



2009/2010



Statistics Canada Statistique Canada



How to obtain more information

For information about this product or the wide range of services and data available from Statistics Canada, visit our website at www.statcan.gc.ca, e-mail us at infostats@statcan.gc.ca, or telephone us, Monday to Friday from 8:30 a.m. to 4:30 p.m., at the following numbers:

Statistics Canada's National Contact Centre

Toll-free telephone (Canada and the United States):

Inquiries line	1-800-263-1136
National telecommunications device for the hearing impaired	1-800-363-7629
Fax line	1-877-287-4369

Local or international calls:

Inquiries line 1-613-951-8116
Fax line 1-613-951-0581

Depository Services Program

Inquiries line	1-800-635-7943
Fax line	1-800-565-7757

To access this product

This product, Catalogue no. 85-003-X, is available free in electronic format. To obtain a single issue, visit our website at www.statcan.gc.ca and browse by "Key resource" > "Publications."

Standards of service to the public

Statistics Canada is committed to serving its clients in a prompt, reliable and courteous manner. To this end, Statistics Canada has developed *standards of service* that its employees observe. To obtain a copy of these service standards, please contact Statistics Canada toll-free at 1-800-263-1136. The service standards are also published on *www.statcan.gc.ca* under "About us" > "The agency" > "Providing services to Canadians."

Victim Services in Canada: National, Provincial and Territorial Fact Sheets

2009/2010

Published by authority of the Minister responsible for Statistics Canada

© Minister of Industry, 2012

All rights reserved. Use of this publication is governed by the *Statistics Canada Open License Agreement*:

http://www.statcan.gc.ca/reference/copyright-droit-auteur-eng.htm

February 2012

Catalogue no. 85-003-X

ISSN 1712-5324

Frequency: Irregular

Ottawa

Cette publication est également disponible en français.

Note of appreciation

Canada owes the success of its statistical system to a long-standing partnership between Statistics Canada, the citizens of Canada, its businesses, governments and other institutions. Accurate and timely statistical information could not be produced without their continued cooperation and goodwill.

User information

Symbols

The following standard symbols are used in Statistics Canada publications:

- . not available for any reference period
- .. not available for a specific reference period
- ... not applicable
- 0 true zero or a value rounded to zero
- 0s value rounded to 0 (zero) where there is a meaningful distinction between true zero and the value that was rounded
- p preliminary
- r revised
- x suppressed to meet the confidentiality requirements of the Statistics Act
- E use with caution
- F too unreliable to be published
- * significantly different from reference category (p < 0.05)

Note

This publication was prepared by **Amanda Ford**.

Table of contents

Victim services in Canada: National, provincial and territorial fact sheets, 2009/2010	4
Fact Sheet – Canada	6
Fact Sheet – Newfoundland and Labrador	8
Fact Sheet – Prince Edward Island	10
Fact Sheet - Nova Scotia	12
Fact Sheet – New Brunswick	14
Fact Sheet – Quebec	16
Fact Sheet – Ontario	18
Fact Sheet – Manitoba	20
Fact Sheet – Saskatchewan	22
Fact Sheet – Alberta	24
Fact Sheet – British Columbia	26
Fact Sheet – Yukon	28
Fact Sheet - Northwest Territories	30
Fact Sheet – Nunavut	31

Victim services in Canada: National, provincial and territorial fact sheets, 2009/2010

by Amanda Ford

In Canada, there are a variety of government-funded agencies whose mandate is to provide assistance to both primary and secondary victims of crime. A primary victim of crime is a person who is the direct victim of a criminal offence, while a secondary victim of crime is a person who has suffered harm or loss as a result of an incident perpetrated against another person, for example, the spouse of a homicide victim.

Information on the types of programs offered by victim service providers as well as those who utilize these services is collected by the Victim Services Survey (VSS).¹ This series of fact sheets presents results from the 2009/2010 cycle of the VSS at the national, provincial and territorial levels.^{2,3}

All of the provinces and territories have their own models of service delivery for victims of crime and each has passed legislation to assist victims of crime (Department of Justice Canada 2010). Services offered to victims can cover a wide range, from counselling and financial compensation to public education and crisis intervention. As such, any comparisons made between jurisdictions should be interpreted with caution.

It is important to note that two reference periods are used in these fact sheets. Information on the providers themselves, including the types of programs and the services offered, is based upon the fiscal year period from April 1, 2009 to March 31, 2010.⁴ Information on the victims who utilized these services is based upon a snapshot date of May 27, 2010. Not all victim service providers were able to report complete data. Where this is the case, exclusions are noted.⁵

^{1.} For further information, see the Juristat article "Victim Services in Canada, 2009/2010" by Christopher Munch.

Residential services are excluded from the Victim Services Survey as information on these providers is collected by the Transition Home Survey. For further information, see the *Juristat* article "Shelters for abused women in Canada, 2010" by Marta Burczycka and Adam Cotter, http://www.statcan.gc.ca/pub/85-002-x/2011001/article/11495-eng.htm (accessed on October 28th, 2011).

^{3.} Funding for the survey and this series of fact sheets was provided by the Policy Centre for Victim Issues of the Department of Justice Canada.

^{4.} Precise reporting periods may vary. Victim service providers were asked to provide information for the previous 12-month period ending March 31, 2010 or their own 12-month fiscal period.

^{5.} The overall response rate for Canada on May 27, 2010 (snapshot day) was 94%.

Text box 1

Types of victim service providers

In 2009/2010, the Victim Services Survey questionnaires were sent to victim service providers and head offices throughout Canada. The term "victim service provider" is used to refer to a wide variety of agencies. Based upon the following definitions, respondents were asked to indicate the type of service that **best described** their agency or organization.

Police-based provider: Victim services that are offered by a federal, provincial or municipal police service.

Court-based victim/witness assistance program: Programs specifically mandated to provide support services for individuals who have become involved in the court process as either victims or witnesses of crime. They generally provide information, assistance, and referrals with the goal of making the court process less intimidating. Specific types of services provided can include court orientation, preparation and accompaniment, updates on the progress of a case, coordination of meetings with the Crown, and an assessment of children's ability to testify. Programs can be geared toward specific clientele such as children or victims of family violence.

Community-based victim/witness assistance program: Community-based, non-profit organizations that participate in the implementation of a victim and/or witness assistance program.⁶

Sexual assault/rape crisis centre or hospital-based sexual assault treatment centre: Victim service whose mandate is to exclusively serve victims of recent or historical sexual assault or rape. Sexual assault/rape crisis centres will often have 24-hour crisis telephone lines and are community—based, non-profit providers. Hospital-based sexual assault centres consist of a team of nurses and physicians that are on-call 24 hours a day, 7 days a week through the emergency department so that victims of sexual assault can receive specialized medical and emotional care.

System-based provider: A model of service delivery for victims of crime that is independent from police, courts and Crown attorneys and assist victims throughout their contact with the criminal justice system. System-based providers may also serve and assist clients who choose not to involve the criminal justice system. These models of service are found in Newfoundland and Labrador, Prince Edward Island, Nova Scotia, New Brunswick, Manitoba and Yukon where they are administered by the provincial or territorial government.

Victim Crisis Assistance and Referral Service: Specific to Ontario, programs or victim service providers that work closely with the police and are community-based, non-government services. They provide on-scene and short-term assistance to victims of crime and other traumatic events and make referrals to community services for longer-term assistance.

^{5.} Crime victim assistance centres in Quebec, called Centres d'aide aux victimes d'actes criminels, are classified as this type of victim service. Centres d'aide aux victimes d'actes criminels are non-profit organizations made up mainly of professionals working in the area of social intervention, such as social workers, psychologists, and criminologists.

Fact Sheet - Canada

Profile of victim service providers in 2009/2010

- From April 1, 2009 to March 31, 2010, there were 911 victim service providers operating in Canada. Among the 787 victim service providers in Canada that responded, 38% were police-based, 24% were community-based, 15% were sexual assault centres, 10% were court-based, 7% were Ontario Victim Crisis Assistance and Referral Services, 6% were system-based, and less than 1% of service providers were categorized as other, unspecified types. In addition to these service providers, there were nine provincial criminal injuries compensation programs, four of which were administered in conjunction with other service providers.
- The victim service providers in Canada that provided information for 2009/2010 reported that they had assisted close to 410,000 primary and secondary victims of crime.⁷
- The types of assistance most often provided directly by victim service providers across Canada in 2009/2010 included: general information (95%), emotional support (93%), liaising with other agencies on behalf of clients (91%) and offering public education and prevention (89%).
- In 2009/2010, 4 in 10 victim service providers in Canada indicated that they offered dedicated programs to specific groups of victims. The most frequently reported groups for which dedicated programs were provided included: children and youth (25%), Aboriginal people (23%), female adults (23%), adults in general (22%), persons with mental disabilities (20%) and persons with physical disabilities (19%).
- Of the victim service providers in Canada for which information was available in 2009/2010, 12% of providers
 reported involvement in the delivery or coordination of restorative justice processes for criminal justice matters.
 In addition, 16% of victim service providers reported offering orientation and information for restorative justice or
 mediation measures, and 25% offered accompaniment and support for restorative justice or mediation measures.
- In addition to being able to serve clients in English (91%) or French (62%), victim service providers in Canada who responded to the survey were able to communicate verbally with clients in other languages such as Spanish (27%), German (21%), Punjabi (19%) and Hindi (18%). Some victim service providers were also able to communicate verbally with clients in Ojibway (13%), Cree (12%), Inuktitut (3%) or other Aboriginal languages (19%).
- The vast majority (97%) of the victim service providers who responded to the survey were able to accommodate clients with reduced mobility. In addition, 7 in 10 victim services reported being able to provide services to people with hearing impairments and just over three-quarters (76%) reported being able to accommodate clients with visual impairments.
- From April 1, 2009 to March 31, 2010, those victim service providers who provided information indicated that they employed the equivalent of 1,946 full-time paid staff across Canada. In addition, victim service providers reported using the services of 8,553 volunteers throughout the year.
- In 2009/2010, the majority (68%) of victim service providers in Canada served areas that have minimum population concentrations of 1,000 and 58% served areas that include small towns, villages and other populated places with less than 1,000 population. In addition, 29% served reserves, with 4% located on a reserve.

Profile of victims on May 27, 2010

 On May 27, 2010 the 729 victim service providers in Canada that provided information reported serving 9,462 people (Table 1). Of the victims where the sex was recorded, 75% were female and 25% were male.⁸

^{7.} The overall response rate for this survey was 86%. Response rates for individual questions for Canada will only be noted if less than 80%.

^{8.} Based upon victims for which the sex was known. The sex of 3,404 victims (or 28%) was not reported.

- Of those victims who received services, 81% said they had been the victim of a violent crime. Of these, 33% were victims of sexual assault, and 61% had been the victim of another violent offence such as physical assault. The remaining victims of violence who received services on May 27, 2010 were secondary victims of homicide (3%) and secondary victims of other offences causing death (2%).
- Among the victims of sexual assault in Canada who received assistance on May 27, 2010, 27% indicated that they
 had been victimized by a current or former spouse or intimate partner and 30% reported having been victimized by
 another family member. The other 43% of victims said they had been sexually assaulted by a non-family member
 such as a friend, an acquaintance or a stranger.
- Of those who reported being the victim of other violent offences,⁹ 61% reported being victimized by a current
 or former spouse or intimate partner. In addition, 12% stated that they had been victimized by another family
 member and 27% indicated they had been victimized by another person such as a friend, an acquaintance or a
 stranger.

Table 1
Number of clients served by victim service agencies, by sex of victim and type of crime, Canada, May 27, 2010

Туре	Sex of victim									
of offence	Female		Male	Male		Unknown		Total		
	number	percent	number	percent	number	percent	number	percent		
Violent offences	5,494	86	1,443	69	433	77	7,370	81		
Homicide	154	2	70	3	3	1	227	3		
Other offences causing death 1	95	1	77	4	8	1	180	2		
Sexual assault	1,922	30	379	18	160	28	2,461	27		
by spouse, ex-spouse, intimate	•						•			
partner	549	9	99	5	22	4	670	7		
by other family member	579	9	102	5	58	10	739	8		
by other relationship	794	12	178	8	80	14	1,052	12		
Other violent offences 2	3,323	52	917	44	262	46	4,502	50		
by spouse, ex-spouse, intimate	-,-						,			
partner	2,434	38	247	12	67	12	2,748	30		
by other family member	273	4	140	7	119	21	532	6		
by other relationship	616	10	530	25	76	13	1,222	13		
Other types of incidents	917	14	652	31	132	23	1,701	19		
Non-violent offences 3	455	7	297	14	57	10	809	9		
Impaired driving	9	0	16	1	3	1	28	0		
Other traffic offences	32	Ō	44	2	13	2	89	1		
Non-criminal incidents	377	6	206	10	49	9	632	7		
Traffic incidents - undetermined										
if criminal	17	0	22	1	2	0	41	0		
Other incidents - undetermined										
if criminal	27	0	67	5	8	1	102	1		
Unknown type of crime	197		81		113		391			
Total	6,608	100	2,176	100	678	100	9,462	100		

Other offences causing death includes impaired driving causing death, dangerous operation of a vehicle causing death, criminal negligence causing death and infanticide.

^{2.} Other violent offences includes crimes that either cause or threaten to cause harm to an individual.

^{3.} Non-violent offences includes property crimes and other non-violent Criminal Code offences.

^{9.} The relationship between the victim and the perpetrator was not collected for homicide and other offences causing death.

Fact Sheet - Newfoundland and Labrador

Profile of victim service providers in 2009/2010

- From April 1, 2009 to March 31, 2010, there were 13 victim service providers operating in Newfoundland and Labrador. Among the 13 victim service providers in Newfoundland and Labrador, 12 were system-based, and one was a sexual assault centre.
- The victim service providers in Newfoundland and Labrador that provided information for 2009/2010 reported that they had assisted 6,760 primary and secondary victims of crime.¹⁰
- The types of assistance provided directly by 100% of victim service providers in Newfoundland and Labrador in 2009/2010 included: court accompaniment, information on criminal justice system structure and process, crisis counselling, crisis intervention and response, emotional support, general information, liaising with other agencies on behalf of client, offering public education and prevention, immediate safety planning, long-term safety planning, training (of other agencies, justice personnel, etc.), and transportation.
- All victim service providers indicated that they offered dedicated programs to specific groups of victims. The most
 frequently reported groups for which dedicated programs were provided included: adults (100%), children and
 youth (92%) and seniors (8%).
- All of the victim service providers in Newfoundland and Labrador were able to accommodate clients with reduced
 mobility, and all reported being able to provide services to people with hearing impairments. One victim service
 provider reported being able to accommodate clients with visual impairments.
- From April 1, 2009 to March 31, 2010, those victim service providers who provided information indicated that they employed the equivalent of 23 full-time paid staff in Newfoundland and Labrador. In addition, victim service providers reported using the services of 15 volunteers throughout the year.
- In 2009/2010, all victim service providers in Newfoundland and Labrador served areas that include small towns, villages and other populated places with less than 1,000 population and just over 3 in 10 agencies served areas that have minimum population concentrations of 1,000 (31%). In addition, 23% served reserves.

Profile of victims on May 27, 2010

- On May 27, 2010, the 13 victim service providers in Newfoundland and Labrador that provided information reported serving 198 people (Table 2). Of the victims where the sex was recorded, 66% were female and 34% were male.¹¹
- Among those who received services, 79% were victims of a violent crime. Of these, just over one-third were victims
 of sexual assault, and 65% were victims of other violent offences, such as physical assault. The remaining 2% of
 victims who received service on May 27, 2010 were victims of other offences causing death.
- Of the victims of sexual assault in Newfoundland and Labrador who received assistance on May 27, 2010, 14% said they had been victimized by their current or former spouse, or intimate partner and 24% reported being victimized by another family member. The other 63% of sexual assault victims stated they had been victimized by another person such as a friend, an acquaintance or a stranger.

^{10.} The overall response rate for Newfoundland and Labrador was 100%. Response rates for individual questions for Newfoundland and Labrador will only be noted if less than 80%.

^{11.} Based upon victims for which the sex was known. The sex of 6 victims (or 3%) was not reported.

 Of those who had been the victim of another type of violent offence,¹² 35% reported being victimized by their current of former spouse or intimate partner. Nearly 16% indicated that they had been victimized by another family member, and almost half (49%) reported being victimized by another person such as a friend, an acquaintance or a stranger.

Table 2
Number of clients served by victim service agencies, by sex of victim and type of crime, Newfoundland and Labrador,
May 27, 2010

Туре	Sex of victim									
of offence	Female		Male	•	Unkno	Unknown		Total		
	number	percent	number	percent	number	percent	number	percent		
Violent offences	111	88	45	68	0	0	156	79		
Homicide	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0		
Other offences causing death 1	1	1	2	3	0	0	3	2		
Sexual assault	41	33	10	15	0	0	51	26		
by spouse, ex-spouse, intimate										
partner	7	6	0	0	0	0	7	4		
by other family member	11	9	1	2	0	0	12	6		
by other relationship	23	18	9	14	0	0	32	16		
Other violent offences 2	69	55	33	50	0	0	102	52		
by spouse, ex-spouse, intimate										
partner	34	27	2	3	0	0	36	18		
by other family member	10	8	6	9	0	0	16	8		
by other relationship	25	20	25	38	0	0	50	25		
Other types of incidents	15	12	21	32	6	100	42	21		
Non-violent offences 3	14	11	20	30	5	83	39	20		
Impaired driving	0	0	0	0	1	17	1	1		
Other traffic offences	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0		
Non-criminal incidents	1	1	0	0	0	0	1	1		
Traffic incidents - undetermined										
if criminal	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0		
Other incidents - undetermined										
if criminal	0	0	1	2	0	0	1	1		
Unknown type of crime	Ô		0		Ō		0			
Total	126	100	66	100	6	100	198	100		

^{1.} Other offences causing death includes impaired driving causing death, dangerous operation of a vehicle causing death, criminal negligence causing death and infanticide.

Note(s): Percentages may not add to 100% due to rounding.

^{2.} Other violent offences includes crimes that either cause or threaten to cause harm to an individual.

^{3.} Non-violent offences includes property crimes and other non-violent Criminal Code offences.

^{12.} The relationship between the victim and the perpetrator was not collected for homicide and other offences causing death.

Fact Sheet - Prince Edward Island

Profile of victim service providers in 2009/2010

- From April 1, 2009 to March 31, 2010, there were three victim service providers operating in Prince Edward Island.
 Among the three victim service providers in Prince Edward Island, two were system-based and one was a sexual assault centre. In addition to these service providers, there was one provincial criminal injuries compensation program that was offered in conjunction with another service provider.
- The victim service providers in Prince Edward Island that provided information for 2009/2010 reported that they
 had assisted 1,054 primary and secondary victims of crime.¹³
- The types of assistance provided directly by all victim service providers in Prince Edward Island in 2009/2010 included: crisis intervention and response, emotional support, general information, hospital accompaniment, liaising with other agencies on behalf of client, public education and prevention, and training (of other agencies, justice personnel, etc.).
- In 2009/2010, two victim service providers in Prince Edward Island reported offering orientation and information, as well as accompaniment and support for restorative justice or mediation measures.
- In addition to being able to serve clients in English (100%), 2 victim service providers in Prince Edward Island who responded to the survey were able to communicate verbally with clients in French.
- All the victim service providers were able to accommodate clients with reduced mobility and all victim service
 providers reported being able to accommodate people with visual impairments. In addition, two victim service
 providers reported being able to provide services to people with hearing impairments.
- From April 1, 2009 to March 31, 2010, victim service providers in Prince Edward Island indicated that they
 employed the equivalent of 9 full-time paid staff. In addition, victim service providers reported using the services
 of 18 volunteers throughout the year.
- In 2009/2010, all victim service providers in Prince Edward Island served areas that have minimum population concentrations of 1,000 and areas that include small towns, villages and other populated places with less than 1,000 populations.

Profile of victims on May 27, 2010

- On May 27, 2010, the 3 victim service providers in Prince Edward Island reported serving 88 people (Table 3). Of the victims, 83% were female and 17% were male.
- Of the victims who received services, 69% said they had been the victim of violent crime. Of these, 48% said they had been victims of sexual assault, and just over half (52%) of the victims who received assistance on May 27, 2010 stated that they were victims of another type of violent offence, such as physical assault.
- Among the victims of sexual assault in Prince Edward Island who received assistance on May 27, 2010, 7% indicated that they had been victimized by a current or former spouse, or an intimate partner. Nearly 6 in 10 (59%) victims said that they were victimized by another family member and 34% reported that they had been sexually assaulted by another person such as a friend, an acquaintance or a stranger.
- Of those who had been the victim of another type of violent offence, 59% reported being victimized by their current or former spouse or an intimate partner. The remainder said that they had been victimized by another family member and another person such as a friend, an acquaintance or a stranger.

^{13.} The overall response rate for Prince Edward Island was 100%. Response rates for individual questions for Prince Edward Island will only be noted if less than 80%.

Table 3

Number of clients served by victim service agencies, by sex of victim and type of crime, Prince Edward Island, May 27, 2010

Туре		Sex of victim								
of offence	Fema	Female)	Unkno	Unknown		Total		
_	number	percent	number	percent	number	percent	number	percent		
Violent offences	53	73	8	53	0	0	61	69		
Homicide	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0		
Other offences causing death 1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0		
Sexual assault	25	34	4	27	0	0	29	33		
by spouse, ex-spouse, intimate										
partner	1	1	1	7	0	0	2	2		
by other family member	16	22	1	7	0	0	17	19		
by other relationship	8	11	2	13	0	0	10	11		
Other violent offences 2	28	38	4	27	0	0	32	36		
by spouse, ex-spouse, intimate										
partner	19	26	0	0	0	0	19	22		
by other family member	1	1	0	0	0	0	1	1		
by other relationship	8	11	4	27	0	0	12	14		
Other types of incidents	20	27	7	47	0	0	27	31		
Non-violent offences 3	14	19	4	27	0	0	18	20		
Impaired driving	1	1	0	0	0	0	1	1		
Other traffic offences	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0		
Non-criminal incidents	5	7	3	20	0	0	8	9		
Traffic incidents - undetermined										
if criminal	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0		
Other incidents - undetermined										
if criminal	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0		
Unknown type of crime	ŏ		ŏ		ŏ		Ō			
Total	73	100	15	100	ŏ	0	88	100		

^{1.} Other offences causing death includes impaired driving causing death, dangerous operation of a vehicle causing death, criminal negligence causing death and infanticide.

^{2.} Other violent offences includes crimes that either cause or threaten to cause harm to an individual.

^{3.} Non-violent offences includes property crimes and other non-violent *Criminal Code* offences. **Note(s):** Percentages may not add to 100% due to rounding.

Fact Sheet - Nova Scotia

Profile of victim service providers in 2009/2010

- From April 1, 2009 to March 31, 2010, there were 20 victim service providers operating in Nova Scotia and one
 provincial criminal injuries compensation program. Among the 16 victim service providers in Nova Scotia that
 participated in the survey, eight were police-based, five were system-based, one was community-based, and one
 was a sexual assault centre. One of the providers was a compensation or financial benefits program for victims
 of crime.
- The victim service providers in Nova Scotia that provided information for 2009/2010 reported that they had assisted 9,011 primary or secondary victims of crime.^{14,15}
- The types of assistance most often provided directly by victim service providers in Nova Scotia in 2009/2010 included: general information (94%), liaising with other agencies on behalf of client and immediate safety planning (both at 88%) and providing information on criminal justice system structure and process (81%).
- In 2009/2010, 6 in 10 victim service providers in Nova Scotia reported offering dedicated programs to specific groups of victims. The most frequently reported groups for which dedicated programs were provided included: Aboriginals (53%), children and youth (33%) and female adults (27%).¹⁶
- Of the victim service providers in Nova Scotia for which information was available in 2009/2010, 27% reported involvement in the delivery or coordination of restorative justice processes for criminal justice matters. In addition, 7% of victim service providers reported offering orientation and information for restorative justice or mediation measures, and just over half (53%) reported offering accompaniment and support for restorative justice or mediation measures.
- In addition to being able to serve clients in English (100%) or French (93%), victim service providers in Nova Scotia who responded to the survey were able to communicate verbally with clients in other languages such as Aboriginal language¹⁷ (67%), German (7%) and Dutch (7%).
- All of the victim service providers who reported to the survey were able to accommodate clients with reduced
 mobility. In addition, 93% of the victim service providers reported being able to provide services to people with
 hearing impairments and 73% reported being able to accommodate clients with visual impairments.
- From April 1, 2009 to March 31, 2010, victim service providers in Nova Scotia indicated that they employed the
 equivalent of 107 full-time paid staff. In addition, providers in Nova Scotia indicated having used the services
 of 65 volunteers.
- In 2009/2010, the majority (73%) of victim service providers in Nova Scotia served areas that have minimum population concentrations of 1,000. In addition, 67% served areas that include small towns, villages and other populated places with less than 1,000 populations and 33% served reserves, with 7% located on a reserve.

Profile of victims on May 27, 2010

 On May 27, 2010, the 13 victim service providers in Nova Scotia that provided information reported serving 272 people (Table 4). Of the victims where the sex was recorded, 70% were female and 30% were male.¹⁸

^{14.} The overall response rate for Nova Scotia was 76%. Response rates for individual questions for Nova Scotia will only be noted if less than 80%.

^{15.} The response rate for this question was 67%.

^{16.} The response rate for this question was 60%

^{17.} Unspecified Aboriginal language other than Cree, Inuktitut and Ojibway.

^{18.} Based upon victims for which the sex was known. The sex of 40 victims (or 15%) was not reported.

- Of those who received services, 87% said they had been the victim of a violent crime. Of this number, 13% were victims of sexual assault while most (85%) had been the victim of another violent offence, such as physical assault. The remaining 1% were secondary victims of homicide.
- Of the victims of sexual assault in Nova Scotia who received assistance on May 27, 2010, 41% reported being victimized by a current or former spouse, or intimate partner. In addition, one-third (33%) stated they were victimized by another family member, and just over one-quarter (26%) indicated they were victimized by another person such as a friend, an acquaintance or a stranger.
- Among the victims of other violent offences,¹⁹ 8 in 10 indicated that they had victimized by a current or former spouse or intimate partner, and 4% reported having been victimized by another family member. The other 16% of victims said they had been victimized by another person such as a friend, an acquaintance or a stranger.

Table 4
Number of clients served by victim service agencies, by sex of victim and type of crime, Nova Scotia, May 27, 2010

Туре		Sex of victim									
of offence	Fema	Female		Male		Unknown		Total			
	number	percent	number	percent	number	percent	number	percent			
Violent offences	152	94	49	70	0	0	201	87			
Homicide	3	2	0	0	0	0	3	1			
Other offences causing death 1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0			
Sexual assault	25	15	2	3	0	0	27	12			
by spouse, ex-spouse, intimate											
partner	11	7	0	0	0	0	11	5			
by other family member	8	5	1	1	0	0	9	4			
by other relationship	6	4	1	1	0	0	7	3			
Other violent offences 2	124	77	47	67	0	0	171	74			
by spouse, ex-spouse, intimate											
partner	105	65	31	44	0	0	136	59			
by other family member	3	2	4	6	0	0	7	3			
by other relationship	16	10	12	17	0	0	28	12			
Other types of incidents	10	6	21	30	0	0	31	13			
Non-violent offences 3	6	4	15	21	0	0	21	9			
Impaired driving	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0			
Other traffic offences	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0			
Non-criminal incidents	3	2	6	9	0	0	9	4			
Traffic incidents - undetermined											
if criminal	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0			
Other incidents - undetermined											
if criminal	1	1	0	0	0	0	1	0			
Unknown type of crime	Ó		Ō		40		40				
Total	162	100	70	100	40	100	272	100			

^{1.} Other offences causing death includes impaired driving causing death, dangerous operation of a vehicle causing death, criminal negligence causing death and infanticide.

^{2.} Other violent offences includes crimes that either cause or threaten to cause harm to an individual.

^{3.} Non-violent offences includes property crimes and other non-violent *Criminal Code* offences.

^{19.} The relationship between the victim and the perpetrator was not collected for homicide and other offences causing death.

Fact Sheet - New Brunswick

Profile of victim service providers in 2009/2010

- From April 1, 2009 to March 31, 2010, there were 22 victim service providers operating in New Brunswick. Among the 21 victim service providers in New Brunswick that responded to the survey, 13 were system-based, five were police-based, one was community-based, one was sexual assault centres and one was categorized as other, unspecified types. In addition to these service providers, there was one provincial criminal injuries compensation program that was offered in conjunction with another service provider.
- The victim service providers in New Brunswick that provided information for 2009/2010 reported that they had assisted 4,848 primary and secondary victims of crime.²⁰
- The types of assistance provided directly by 100% of victim service providers in New Brunswick in 2009/2010 included: crisis intervention and response, emotional support and liaising with other agencies on behalf of the client.
- In 2009/2010, 86% of victim service providers in New Brunswick reported that they offered dedicated programs to specific groups of victims. The most frequently reported groups for which dedicated programs were provided included: children and youth (81%), Francophones (81%), adults (76%), Aboriginals (76%) and seniors (76%).
- Of the victim service providers in New Brunswick for which information was available in 2009/2010, almost
 one-quarter (24%) indicated involvement in the delivery or coordination of restorative justice processes
 for criminal justice matters. In addition, nearly one-quarter (24%) of victim service providers reported
 offering orientation and information for restorative justice or mediation measures, and 24% reported offering
 accompaniment and support for restorative justice or mediation measures.
- In addition to being able to serve clients in English (100%) or French (100%), victim service providers in New Brunswick who responded to the survey were able to communicate with clients in an Aboriginal language²¹ (62%).
- Most (90%) of the victim service providers who responded to the survey were able to accommodate clients with reduced mobility. As well, 86% reported being able to provide services to people with hearing impairments and just over one-quarter (29%) reported being able to accommodate clients with visual impairments.
- From April 1, 2009 to March 31, 2010, victim service providers in New Brunswick indicated that they employed
 the equivalent of 71 full-time paid staff. In addition to this number, victim service providers indicated having used
 the services of 158 volunteers throughout the year.
- In 2009/2010, the majority (67%) of victim service providers in New Brunswick served areas considered to be
 areas that include small towns, villages and other populated places with less than 1,000 populations, and 62%
 served areas that have minimum population concentrations of 1,000. In addition, 62% served reserves, with 5%
 located on a reserve.

Profile of victims on May 27, 2010

 On May 27, 2010, the 21 victim service providers in New Brunswick reported serving 1,385 people (Table 5). Of the victims where the sex was recorded, 69% were female and 31% were male.²²

^{20.} The overall response rate for New Brunswick was 95%. Response rates for individual questions for New Brunswick will only be noted if less than 80%.

^{21.} Unspecified Aboriginal language other than Cree, Inuktitut and Ojibway.

^{22.} Based upon victims for which the sex was known. The sex of 44 victims (or 3%) was not reported.

- Of those who received services, 65% said they had been the victim of a violent crime. Of this number, 34% were victims of sexual assault, and most people (63%) had been the victim of another violent offence, such as physical assault. The remaining 2% victims who received services on May 27, 2010 were secondary victims of homicide and 1% were secondary victims of other offences causing death.
- Among the victims of sexual assault who received assistance in New Brunswick on May 27, 2010, 4% indicated
 that they had been victimized by a current or former spouse or an intimate partner and 8% reported having been
 victimized by another family member. The majority (87%) stated they had been sexually assaulted by another
 person such as a friend, an acquaintance or a stranger.
- Of those who had been the victim of another type of violent offence, 23 35% said that they had been victimized by a current or former spouse or an intimate partner. Another 5% reported that they had been victimized by another family member and 61% indicated that they had been victimized by another person such as a friend, an acquaintance or a stranger.

Table 5
Number of clients served by victim service agencies, by sex of victim and type of crime, New Brunswick, May 27, 2010

Туре	Sex of victim									
of offence	Fema	Female		Male		Unknown		Total		
	number	percent	number	percent	number	percent	number	percent		
Violent offences	538	70	231	65	2	5	771	66		
Homicide	9	1	7	2	0	0	16	1		
Other offences causing death 1	6	1	3	1	0	0	9	1		
Sexual assault	219	29	43	12	0	0	262	23		
by spouse, ex-spouse, intimate										
partner	11	1	0	0	0	0	11	1		
by other family member	19	2	3	1	0	0	22	2		
by other relationship	189	25	40	11	0	0	229	20		
Other violent offences 2	304	40	178	50	2	5	484	42		
by spouse, ex-spouse, intimate										
partner	155	20	11	3	1	2	167	14		
by other family member	16	2	6	2	1	2	23	2		
by other relationship	133	17	161	45	0	0	294	25		
Other types of incidents	226	30	125	35	41	95	392	34		
Non-violent offences 3	218	29	123	35	22	51	363	31		
Impaired driving	0	0	0	0	2	5	2	0		
Other traffic offences	2	0	1	0	8	19	11	1		
Non-criminal incidents	6	1	0	0	5	12	11	1		
Traffic incidents - undetermined										
if criminal	0	0	0	0	2	5	2	0		
Other incidents - undetermined										
if criminal	0	0	1	0	2	5	3	0		
Unknown type of crime	163		58		1		222			
Total	927	100	414	100	44	100	1,385	100		

^{1.} Other offences causing death includes impaired driving causing death, dangerous operation of a vehicle causing death, criminal negligence causing death and infanticide.

^{2.} Other violent offences includes crimes that either cause or threaten to cause harm to an individual.

^{3.} Non-violent offences includes property crimes and other non-violent Criminal Code offences.

^{23.} The relationship between the victim and the perpetrator was not collected for homicide and other offences causing death.

Fact Sheet - Quebec

Profile of victim service providers in 2009/2010

- From April 1, 2009 to March 31, 2010, there were 103 victim service providers operating in Quebec. Among the
 victim service providers in Quebec that participated in the survey, 71 were community-based, 13 were sexual
 assault centres, and five were police-based. In addition to these service providers, there was one provincial
 criminal injuries compensation program.
- The victim service providers in Quebec who provided information for 2009/2010 reported that they had assisted 69,475 primary and secondary victims of crime.²⁴
- The types of assistance most often provided directly by victim service providers in Quebec in 2009/2010 included: court orientation and information, court accompaniment, information on criminal justice system structure and process, victim and witness preparation, and claims assistance (all at 96%).
- In 2009/2010, over 3 in 10 (32%) victim service providers in Quebec indicated that they offered dedicated programs to specific groups of victims. The most frequently reported groups for which dedicated programs were provided included: adults (13%), female adults, Anglophones, Aboriginal persons, people with physical disabilities, and lesbian/bisexuals (all at 11%).
- Of the victim service providers in Quebec for which information was available in 2009/2010, 2% reported involvement in the delivery or coordination of restorative justice processes for criminal justice matters. In addition, 13% of victim service providers reported offering orientation and information for restorative justice or mediation measures, and 10% reported offering accompaniment and support for restorative justice or mediation measures.
- In addition to being able to serve clients in French (90%) or English (84%), victim service providers in Quebec who responded to the survey were able to communicate verbally with clients in other languages such as Spanish (49%), an Aboriginal language²⁵ (22%), Italian (12%) and Arabic (10%).
- Most (92%) of the victim service providers who responded to the survey were able to accommodate clients with reduced mobility. In addition, 81% of victim service providers reported being able to provide services to people with hearing impairments and all reported being able to accommodate clients with visual impairments.
- From April 1, 2009 to March 31, 2010, those victim service providers in Quebec who provided information indicated
 that they employed the equivalent of 282 full-time staff. In addition, victim service providers indicated having used
 the services of 334 volunteers throughout the year.
- In 2009/2010, the majority (79%) of victim service providers in Quebec served areas that have minimum population concentrations of 1,000, and just over half (57%) served areas that include small towns, villages and other populated places with less than 1,000 population. In addition, almost one-quarter (24%) served reserves, with 3% located on a reserve.

Profile of victims on May 27, 2010

 On May 27, 2010, the 77 victim service providers in Quebec that provided information reported serving 815 people (Table 6). Of the victims where the sex was reported, 70% were female and 30% were male.²⁶

^{24.} The overall response rate for Quebec was 87%. Response rates for individual questions for Quebec will only be noted if less than 80%.

^{25.} Unspecified Aboriginal language other than Cree, Inuktitut and Ojibway.

^{26.} Based upon victims for which the sex was known. The sex of 151 victims (or 19%) was not reported.

- Among those victims who received services, 92% said they had been the victim of a violent crime. Of these, 45% were victims of sexual assault and just over half (54%) had been the victim of another violent offence, such as physical assault. The remaining victims of violence who received services on May 27, 2010 were secondary victims of homicide or another offence causing death (1%).
- Among the victims of sexual assault in Quebec who received assistance on May 27, 2010, 39% said that they
 had been victimized by a current or former spouse or an intimate partner, and 37% reported being victimized by
 another family member. Almost one-quarter (24%) stated that they had been sexually assaulted by a non-family
 member such as a friend, an acquaintance or a stranger.
- Of those who reported being the victim of other violent offences,²⁷ 29% reported being victimized by a current or former spouse or an intimate partner. In addition, 35% stated that they had been victimized by another family member and 36% reported being victimized by another person such as a friend, an acquaintance or a stranger.

Table 6
Number of clients served by victim service agencies, by sex of victim and type of crime, Quebec, May 27, 2010

Туре				Sex of v	rictim			
of offence	Fema	Female)	Unkno	wn	Total	
_	number	percent	number	percent	number	percent	number	percent
Violent offences	427	92	171	89	140	96	738	92
Homicide	2	0	3	2	0	0	5	1
Other offences causing death 1	1	0	1	1	1	1	3	0
Sexual assault	241	52	50	26	38	26	329	41
by spouse, ex-spouse, intimate								
partner	121	26	3	2	3	2	127	16
by other family member	64	14	24	12	34	23	122	15
by other relationship	56	12	23	12	1	1	80	10
Other violent offences 2	183	40	117	61	101	69	401	50
by spouse, ex-spouse, intimate								
partner	102	22	9	5	7	5	118	15
by other family member	24	5	23	12	92	63	139	17
by other relationship	57	12	85	44	2	1	144	18
Other types of incidents	36	8	25	11	11	8	77	10
Non-violent offences 3	30	6	14	7	6	4	50	6
Impaired driving	1	0	2	1	0	0	3	0
Other traffic offences	4	1	2	1	0	0	6	1
Non-criminal incidents	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Traffic incidents - undetermined								
if criminal	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Other incidents - undetermined								
if criminal	1	0	4	2	0	0	5	1
Unknown type of crime	5		3		5		13	
Total	468	100	196	100	151	100	815	100

^{1.} Other offences causing death includes impaired driving causing death, dangerous operation of a vehicle causing death, criminal negligence causing death and infanticide

^{2.} Other violent offences includes crimes that either cause or threaten to cause harm to an individual.

^{3.} Non-violent offences includes property crimes and other non-violent *Criminal Code* offences.

^{27.} The relationship between the victim and the perpetrator was not collected for homicide and other offences causing death.

Fact Sheet - Ontario

Profile of victim service providers in 2009/2010

- From April 1, 2009 to March 31, 2010, there were 266 victim service providers operating in Ontario. Among the victim service providers in Ontario that participated in the survey, 81 were sexual assault centres, 66 were court-based, 58 were Victim Crisis Assistance and Referral Service centres, 16 were community-based and 14 were police-based. In addition to these service providers, there was one provincial criminal injuries compensation program.
- The victim service providers in Ontario that provided information for 2009/2010 reported that they had assisted 138,615 primary and secondary victims of crime.²⁸
- The types of assistance most often provided directly by victim service providers in Ontario in 2009/2010 included: emotional support (97%), general information (94%), and liaising with other agencies on behalf of the client (92%).
- In 2009/2010, 37% of victim service providers in Ontario reported that they offered dedicated programs to specific
 groups of victims. The most frequently reported groups for which dedicated programs were provided included:
 adult females (28%), persons with mental disabilities (22%), senior females (21%), and lesbian/bisexual women
 (20%).
- Of the victim service providers in Ontario for which information was available in 2009/2010, 4% of service providers reported involvement in the delivery or coordination of restorative justice processes for criminal justice matters. In addition, 3% of victim service providers reported offering orientation and information for restorative justice or mediation measures, and 11% reported offering accompaniment and support for restorative justice or mediation measures.
- In addition to being able to serve clients in English (97%) or French (81%), victim service providers in Ontario who responded to the survey were able to communicate verbally with clients in other languages such as Italian (48%), Spanish (44%), German (44%) and Ojibway (41%).
- The majority (98%) of victim service providers in Ontario who responded to the survey were able to accommodate
 clients with reduced mobility. In addition, 87% of the victim service providers reported being able to provide
 services to people with hearing impairments and 93% reported being able to accommodate clients with visual
 impairments.
- From April 1, 2009 to March 31, 2010, those victim service providers in Ontario who provided information indicated that they employed the equivalent of 657 full-time paid staff. In addition, victim service providers reported using the services of 4,153 volunteers.
- In 2009/2010, the majority (77%) of victim service providers in Ontario served areas that have minimum population concentrations of 1,000. In addition, over 7 in 10 (71%) served areas that include small towns, villages and other populated places with less than 1,000 populations and 17% served reserves, with 2% located on a reserve.

Profile of victims on May 27, 2010

 On May 27, 2010, the 221 victim service providers in Ontario that provided information reported serving 2,828 people (Table 7). Of the victims where the sex was recorded, 86% were female and 14% were male.²⁹

^{28.} The overall response rate for Ontario was 88%. Response rates for individual questions for Ontario will only be noted if less than 80%.

^{29.} Based upon victims for which the sex was known. The sex of 137 victims (or 5%) was not reported.

- Among those victims who received services in Ontario, 95% were victims of a violent crime. Of these, 31% were victims of sexual assault, and 61% were the victim of another violent offence, such as physical assault. The remaining victims of violence who received services on May 27, 2010 were secondary victims of homicide (4%), and other offences causing death (4%).
- Of the victims of sexual assault who received assistance in Ontario on May 27, 2010, almost one-quarter (23%) said that they had been victimized by a current or former spouse or an intimate partner, and 38% reported that they had been victimized by another family member. The other 40% of sexual assault victims said they had been sexually assaulted by non-family members such as a friend, an acquaintance or a stranger.
- Of those who reported being the victim of other violent offences,³⁰ 72% reported being victimized by a current or former spouse or an intimate partner. In addition, 9% indicated that they were victimized by another family member and 19% reported being victimized by another person such as a friend, an acquaintance or a stranger.

Table 7
Number of clients served by victim service agencies, by sex of victim and type of crime, Ontario, May 27, 2010

Туре	Sex of victim									
of offence	Fema	Female		Male		Unknown		Total		
_	number	percent	number	percent	number	percent	number	percent		
Violent offences	2,210	96	327	84	110	98	2,647	95		
Homicide	[*] 72	3	24	6	0	0	96	3		
Other offences causing death 1	50	2	47	12	7	6	104	4		
Sexual assault	717	31	69	18	47	42	833	30		
by spouse, ex-spouse, intimate										
partner	170	7	6	2	12	11	188	7		
by other family member	268	12	22	6	23	21	313	11		
by other relationship	279	12	41	11	12	11	332	12		
Other violent offences 2	1,371	60	187	48	56	50	1,614	58		
by spouse, ex-spouse, intimate	•						•			
partner	1,029	45	94	24	37	33	1,160	41		
by other family member	107	5	37	10	3	3	147	5		
by other relationship	235	10	56	14	16	14	307	11		
Other types of incidents	86	4	62	16	2	2	150	5		
Non-violent offences 3	23	1	6	2	1	1	30	1		
Impaired driving	2	0	2	1	0	0	4	0		
Other traffic offences	3	0	19	5	0	0	22	1		
Non-criminal incidents	49	2	21	5	1	1	71	3		
Traffic incidents - undetermined										
if criminal	2	0	6	2	0	0	8	0		
Other incidents - undetermined										
if criminal	7	0	8	2	0	0	15	1		
Unknown type of crime	5		1		25		31			
Total	2,301	100	390	100	137	100	2,828	100		

^{1.} Other offences causing death includes impaired driving causing death, dangerous operation of a vehicle causing death, criminal negligence causing death and infanticide

^{2.} Other violent offences includes crimes that either cause or threaten to cause harm to an individual.

^{3.} Non-violent offences includes property crimes and other non-violent *Criminal Code* offences.

^{30.} The relationship between the victim and the perpetrator was not collected for homicide and other offences causing death.

Fact Sheet - Manitoba

Profile of victim service providers in 2009/2010

- From April 1, 2009 to March 31, 2010, there were 15 victim service providers operating in Manitoba. Among the
 victim service providers in Manitoba, nine were system-based, five were police-based and one was court-based.
 In addition to these service providers, there was one provincial criminal injuries compensation program that was
 offered in conjunction with another service provider.
- The victim service providers in Manitoba that provided information for 2009/2010 reported that they had assisted 29,152 victims of crime.³¹
- The types of assistance most often provided directly by victim service providers in Manitoba in 2009/2010 included: general information and emotional support (both at 100%), victim notification (e.g., hearings, offender relocation, offender release, etc.,) and public education and prevention (both at 93%).
- In 2009/2010, 67% of providers offered dedicated programs to specific groups of victims. The most frequently reported groups for which dedicated programs were provided included: adults (60%), children and youth (60%), and seniors (7%).
- Of the victim service providers in Manitoba for which information was available in 2009/2010, 27% of providers
 reported being involved in the delivery or coordination of restorative justice processes for criminal justice matters.
 In addition, 67% of victim service providers reported offering orientation and information for restorative justice or
 mediation measures, and 67% reported offering accompaniment and support for restorative justice or mediation
 measures.
- In addition to being able to serve clients in English (100%) or French (80%), victim service providers in Manitoba who responded to the survey were able to communicate verbally with clients in other languages such as Polish (67%), Cree (60%), Croatian (60%) and Spanish (60%).
- All the victim service providers were able to accommodate clients with impaired mobility. In addition, 67% of the
 victim service providers reported being able to provide services to people with hearing impairments and 67%
 reported being able to accommodate clients with visual impairments.
- From April 1, 2009 to March 31, 2010, those victim service providers in Manitoba who provided information indicated that they employed the equivalent of 44 full-time paid staff. In addition, victim service providers reported using the services of 74 volunteers throughout the year.
- In 2009/2010, the majority (60%) of victim service providers in Manitoba served areas that have minimum population concentrations of 1,000, and 4 in 10 served areas that include small towns, villages and other populated places with less than 1,000 populations.

Profile of victims on May 27, 2010

- On May 27, 2010, the 15 victim service providers in Manitoba that provided information reported serving 390 people (Table 8). Of the victims where the sex was reported, 74% were female, 26% were male.³²
- Of those victims in Manitoba who received services, 75% said they had been the victim of a violent crime. Of
 these, 22% were victims of sexual assault, and most people (68%) had been the victim of another violent offence,
 such as physical assault. The remaining victims who received services on May 27, 2010 were secondary victims
 of homicide (8%), and other offences causing death (2%).

^{31.} The overall response rate for Manitoba was 100%. Response rates for individual questions for Manitoba will only be noted if less than 80%.

^{32.} Based upon victims for which the sex was known. The sex of 27 victims (or 7%) was not reported.

- Among the victims of sexual assault in Manitoba who received assistance on May 27, 2010, 21% indicated
 that they had been victimized by a current or former spouse or an intimate partner, and 40% reported having
 been victimized by another family member. The other 40% reported said they had been sexually assaulted by a
 non-family member such as a friend, an acquaintance or a stranger.
- Of those who reported being the victim of another type of violent offence,³³ 67% reported being victimized by a
 current or former spouse or an intimate partner. In addition, 12% stated that they had been victimized by another
 family member and 22% said they had been victimized by another person such as a friend, an acquaintance or
 a stranger.

Table 8
Number of clients served by victim service agencies, by sex of victim and type of crime, Manitoba, May 27, 2010

Туре	Sex of victim									
of offence	Fema	Female		Male		wn	Total			
	number	percent	number	percent	number	percent	number	percent		
Violent offences	210	78	57	61	25	93	292	75		
Homicide	18	7	6	6	0	0	24	6		
Other offences causing death 1	2	1	3	3	0	0	5	1		
Sexual assault	47	17	13	14	3	11	63	16		
by spouse, ex-spouse, intimate										
partner	8	3	5	5	0	0	13	3		
by other family member	21	8	4	4	0	0	25	6		
by other relationship	18	7	4	4	3	11	25	6		
Other violent offences 2	143	53	35	38	22	81	200	51		
by spouse, ex-spouse, intimate										
partner	125	46	6	6	2	7	133	34		
by other family member	8	3	8	9	8	30	24	6		
by other relationship	10	4	21	23	12	44	43	11		
Other types of incidents	60	22	36	39	2	7	98	25		
Non-violent offences 3	15	6	11	12	2	7	28	7		
Impaired driving	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0		
Other traffic offences	6	2	7	8	0	0	13	3		
Non-criminal incidents	39	14	6	6	0	0	45	12		
Traffic incidents - undetermined										
if criminal	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0		
Other incidents - undetermined										
if criminal	0	0	12	13	0	0	12	3		
Unknown type of crime	0		0		Ö		0			
Total	270	100	93	100	27	100	390	100		

^{1.} Other offences causing death includes impaired driving causing death, dangerous operation of a vehicle causing death, criminal negligence causing death and infanticide.

^{2.} Other violent offences includes crimes that either cause or threaten to cause harm to an individual.

^{3.} Non-violent offences includes property crimes and other non-violent Criminal Code offences.

^{33.} The relationship between the victim and the perpetrator was not collected for homicide and other offences causing death.

Fact Sheet - Saskatchewan

Profile of victim service providers in 2009/2010

- From April 1, 2009 to March 31, 2010, there were 101 victim service providers operating in Saskatchewan. Among the 93 victim service providers in Saskatchewan that participated in the 2009/2010 survey, 67 were police-based, 10 were community-based, 10 were sexual assault centres, and six were court-based. In addition to these service providers, there was one provincial criminal injuries compensation program that was offered in conjunction with another service provider.
- The victim service providers in Saskatchewan that provided information for 2009/2010 reported that they had assisted 27,933 primary and secondary victims of crime.34
- The types of assistance most often provided directly by victim service providers in Saskatchewan in 2009/2010 included: emotional support (99%), general information (98%), and liaising with other agencies on behalf of the client (96%).
- In 2009/2010, 43% of victim service providers in Saskatchewan that responded to the survey indicated that they offered dedicated programs to specific groups of victims. The most frequently reported groups for which dedicated programs were provided included: children and youth (37%), adults (28%), female adults (26%), Aboriginal persons (25%), and seniors (23%).
- Of the service providers in Saskatchewan for which information was available in 2009/2010, 20% reported involvement in the delivery or coordination of restorative justice processes for criminal justice matters. In addition, just over half (51%) of victim service providers reported offering orientation and information for restorative justice or mediation measures, and 58% reported offering accompaniment and support for restorative justice or mediation measures.
- In addition to being able to serve clients in English (99%), victim service providers in Saskatchewan who responded to the survey were able to communicate verbally with clients in other languages such as Cree (46%), French (23%), an Aboriginal language³⁵ (18%), and Ukrainian (9%).
- Almost all (99%) of the victim service providers in Saskatchewan who responded to the survey were able to accommodate clients with mobility impairments. In addition, just over half (57%) of the victim service providers reported being able to provide services to people with hearing impairments, and 76% providers reported being able to accommodate clients with visual impairments.
- From April 1, 2009 to March 31, 2010, those victim service providers in Saskatchewan who provided information indicated that they employed the equivalent of 135 full-time paid staff. In addition, victim service providers reported using the services of 640 volunteers throughout the year.
- In 2009/2010, the majority (73%) of victim service providers in Saskatchewan served areas that include small towns, villages and other populated places with less than 1,000 populations and nearly 6 in 10 (57%) served areas that have minimum population concentrations of 1,000. In addition, nearly half (49%) served reserves, with 8% located on a reserve.

Profile of victims on May 27, 2010

On May 27, 2010, the 90 victim service providers in Saskatchewan that provided information reported serving 822 people (Table 9). Of the victims where sex was reported, 75% were female and 25% were male, identical to the proportions for Canada as a whole.³⁶

^{34.} The overall response rate for Saskatchewan was 92%. Response rates for individual questions for Saskatchewan will only be noted if less than 80%.

^{35.} Unspecified Aboriginal language other than Cree, Inuktitut and Ojibway.

^{36.} Based upon victims for which the sex was known. The sex of 26 victims (or 3%) was not reported.

- Of those who received services in Saskatchewan, 85% said they had been the victim of a violent crime. Of these, 34% were victims of sexual assault, and 62% had been the victim of another violent offence, such as physical assault. The remaining victims of violence (4%) who received services on May 27, 2010 were secondary victims of homicide and other offences causing death.
- Among victims of sexual assault in Saskatchewan who received assistance on May 27, 2010, 64% said that they
 had been victimized by a current or former spouse or intimate partner. In addition, 12% indicated that they had
 been victimized by another family member, and 24% stated that they had been sexually assaulted by a non-family
 member such as a friend, an acquaintance or a stranger.
- Of those who reported being the victim of another type of violent offence,³⁷ 65% indicated being victimized by a
 current or former spouse or intimate partner. In addition, 15% reported that they had been victimized by another
 family member and 21% said they had been victimized by another person such as a friend, an acquaintance or
 a stranger.

Table 9
Number of clients served by victim service agencies, by sex of victim and type of crime, Saskatchewan, May 27, 2010

Туре	Sex of victim									
of offence	Fema	Female		Male		Unknown		Total		
<u>-</u>	number	percent	number	percent	number	percent	number	percent		
Violent offences	505	85	164	83	25	96	694	85		
Homicide	16	3	12	6	0	0	28	3		
Other offences causing death 1	0	0	1	1	0	0	1	0		
Sexual assault	146	25	77	39	15	58	238	29		
by spouse, ex-spouse, intimate										
partner	84	14	69	35	0	0	153	19		
by other family member	21	4	8	4	0	0	29	4		
by other relationship	41	7	0	0	15	58	56	7		
Other violent offences 2	343	58	74	38	10	38	427	52		
by spouse, ex-spouse, intimate										
partner	259	44	17	9	0	0	276	34		
by other family member	51	9	11	6	0	0	62	8		
by other relationship	33	6	46	23	10	38	89	11		
Other types of incidents	87	15	33	17	1	4	121	15		
Non-violent offences ³	25	4	15	8	1	4	41	5		
Impaired driving	1	0	1	1	0	0	2	Ō		
Other traffic offences	0	Ö	Ö	0	Ö	Ō	0	Ō		
Non-criminal incidents	53	9	7	4	0	Ō	60	7		
Traffic incidents - undetermined										
if criminal	7	1	6	3	0	0	13	2		
Other incidents - undetermined										
if criminal	1	0	4	2	0	0	5	1		
Unknown type of crime	4		Ó	-	ŏ		4			
Total	596	100	200	100	26	100	822	100		

Other offences causing death includes impaired driving causing death, dangerous operation of a vehicle causing death, criminal negligence causing death and infanticide.

3. Non-violent offences includes property crimes and other non-violent *Criminal Code* offences.

Note(s): Percentages may not add to 100% due to rounding.

^{2.} Other violent offences includes crimes that either cause or threaten to cause harm to an individual.

^{37.} The relationship between the victim and the perpetrator was not collected for homicide and other offences causing death.

Fact Sheet - Alberta

Profile of victim service providers in 2009/2010

- From April 1, 2009 to March 31, 2010, there were 138 victim service providers operating in Alberta. Among
 the 121 victim service providers who participated in the survey, 98 were police-based, 11 were community-based,
 five were sexual assault centres, four were court-based and three victim service providers were categorized
 as other, unspecified types. In addition to these service providers, there was one provincial criminal injuries
 compensation program.
- The victim service providers in Alberta that provided information in 2009/2010 reported that they had assisted 55,692 primary and secondary victims of crime.³⁸
- The types of assistance most often provided directly by victim service providers in Alberta in 2009/2010 included: general information (98%), court orientation and information (97%), and court accompaniment and emotional support (both at 96%).
- In 2009/2010, 3 in 10 (31%) victim service providers in Alberta that responded to the survey indicated that they
 offered dedicated programs to specific groups of victims. The most frequently reported groups for which dedicated
 programs were provided included: Aboriginal persons (27%), adults of both sexes (26%), seniors (25%), adult
 females (24%) and adult males (22%).
- Of the victim service providers in Alberta for which information was available in 2009/2010, 19% reported involvement in the delivery or coordination of restorative justice processes for criminal justice matters. In addition, one in ten victim service providers reported offering orientation and information for restorative justice or mediation measures, and 19% reported offering accompaniment and support for restorative justice or mediation measures.
- In addition to being able to serve clients in English (79%) and French (41%), victim service providers in Alberta who responded to the survey were able to communicate verbally with clients in other languages such as German (17%), Cree (15%), Spanish (15%), and Ukrainian (8%).
- The vast majority (97%) of victim service providers in Alberta who responded to the survey were able to
 accommodate clients with reduced mobility. In addition, 59% of the victim service providers reported being able
 to provide services to people with hearing impairments and 63% reported being able to accommodate clients
 with visual impairments.
- From April 1, 2009 to March 31, 2010, those victim service providers in Alberta who provided information indicated that they employed the equivalent of 330 full-time paid staff. In addition, victim service providers indicated having used the services of 1,834 volunteers throughout the year.
- In 2009/2010, victim service providers in Alberta served areas that have minimum population concentrations of 1,000 and areas that include small towns, villages and other populated places with less than 1,000 population (both at 60%). In addition, just over one-quarter (26%) served reserves, with 11% located on a reserve.

Profile of victims on May 27, 2010

• On May 27, 2010, the 113 victim service providers in Alberta that provided information reported serving 980 people (Table 10). Of the victims where the sex was reported, 64% were female and 36% were male.³⁹

^{38.} The overall response rate for Alberta was 88%. Response rates for individual questions for Alberta will only be noted if less than 80%.

^{39.} Based upon victims for which the sex was known. The sex of 197 victims (or 20%) was not reported.

- Of those victims who received services in Alberta, 62% said they had been the victim of a violent crime. Of the victims of violent crimes, 36% were victims of sexual assault, and the majority (55%) had been the victim of another violent offence, such as physical assault. Of the remaining victims of a violent offence who received services, 6% were secondary victims of homicide, and 3% were victims of other offences causing death.
- Among victims of sexual assault in Alberta who received assistance on May 27, 2010, 18% indicated that they
 had been victimized by a current or former spouse or intimate partner and 30% reported having been victimized
 by another family member. The other 52% of victims stated they had been sexually assaulted by a non-family
 member such as a friend, an acquaintance or a stranger.
- Of those who reported being the victim of other violent offences, 40 just over half (54%) indicated being victimized by a current or former spouse or intimate partner. In addition, 13% stated that they had been victimized by another family member and 33% indicated they had been victimized by another person such as a friend, an acquaintance or a stranger.

Table 10
Number of clients served by victim service agencies, by sex of victim and type of crime, Alberta, May 27, 2010

Type of offence	Sex of victim								
	Female		Male		Unknown		Total		
	number	percent	number	percent	number	percent	number	percent	
Violent offences	359	72	110	39	111	71	580	62	
Homicide	24	5	12	4	0	0	36	4	
Other offences causing death 1	12	2	6	2	0	0	18	2	
Sexual assault	129	26	27	10	50	32	206	22	
by spouse, ex-spouse, intimate									
partner	29	6	1	0	7	4	37	4	
by other family member	49	10	11	4	1	1	61	7	
by other relationship	51	10	15	5	42	27	108	12	
Other violent offences 2	194	39	65	23	61	39	320	34	
by spouse, ex-spouse, intimate									
partner	138	28	20	7	15	10	173	18	
by other family member	22	4	4	1	15	10	41	4	
by other relationship	34	7	41	14	31	20	106	11	
Other types of incidents	139	28	173	61	46	29	358	38	
Non-violent offences 3	36	7	51	18	14	9	101	11	
Impaired driving	1	0	3	1	0	0	4	0	
Other traffic offences	11	2	8	3	0	0	19	2	
Non-criminal incidents	87	17	108	38	28	18	223	24	
Traffic incidents - undetermined									
if criminal	1	0	2	1	0	0	3	0	
Other incidents - undetermined									
if criminal	3	1	1	0	4	3	8	1	
Unknown type of crime	1		1		40		42		
Total	499	100	284	100	197	100	980	100	

^{1.} Other offences causing death includes impaired driving causing death, dangerous operation of a vehicle causing death, criminal negligence causing death and infanticide.

3. Non-violent offences includes property crimes and other non-violent *Criminal Code* offences.

Note(s): Percentages may not add to 100% due to rounding.

^{2.} Other violent offences includes crimes that either cause or threaten to cause harm to an individual.

^{40.} The relationship between the victim and the perpetrator was not collected for homicide and other offences causing death.

Fact Sheet - British Columbia

Profile of victim service providers in 2009/2010

- From April 1, 2009 to March 31, 2010, there were 213 victim service providers operating in British Columbia.
 Among the 174 victim service providers who participated in the survey, 94 were police-based, 75 were community-based, three were court-based and two were sexual assault centres. In addition to these service providers, there was one provincial criminal injuries compensation program.
- The victim service providers in British Columbia that provided information in 2009/2010 reported that they had assisted 65,218 primary and secondary victims of crime.⁴¹
- The types of assistance most often provided directly by victim service providers in British Columbia in 2009/2010 included: emotional support (98%), general information (97%), liaising with other agencies on behalf of the client (95%), and immediate safety planning (94%).
- In 2009/2010, nearly 4 in 10 (39%) victim service providers in British Columbia indicated that they offered dedicated programs to specific groups of victims. The most frequently reported groups for which dedicated programs were provided included: Aboriginal persons (29%), lesbian/bisexual women (25%), children and youth (25%), persons with physical disabilities (23%) and persons with mental disabilities (21%).
- Of the victim service providers in British Columbia for which information was available in 2009/2010, 13% reported involvement in the delivery or coordination of restorative justice processes for criminal justice matters. In addition, 17% of victim service providers reported offering orientation and information for restorative justice or mediation measures, and 32% reported offering accompaniment and support for restorative justice or mediation measures.
- In addition to being able to serve clients in English (84%) and French (45%), victim service providers in British Columbia who responded to the survey were able to communicate verbally with clients in other languages such as Punjabi (28%), Hindi (25%) and Spanish (16%).
- The vast majority (97%) of victim service providers who responded to the survey were able to accommodate clients with reduced mobility. Half of the victim service providers reported being able to provide services to people with hearing impairments, and 63% reported being able to accommodate clients with visual impairments.
- From April 1, 2009 to March 31, 2010, those victim service providers in British Columbia who provided information indicated that they employed the equivalent of 275 full-time paid staff. In addition, victim service providers reported using the services of 1,258 volunteers throughout the year.
- In 2009/2010, the majority (66%) of victim service providers in British Columbia served areas that have minimum population concentrations of 1,000 and just over half (57%) served areas that include small towns, villages and other populated places with less than 1,000 population. In addition, nearly 4 in 10 (39%) served reserves, with 3% located on a reserve.

Profile of victims on May 27, 2010

 On May 27, 2010, the 157 victim service providers in British Columbia that provided information reported serving 1,647 people (Table 11). Of the victims where sex was reported, 72% were female and 28% were male.⁴²

^{41.} The overall response rate for British Columbia was 82%. Response rates for individual questions for British Columbia will only be noted if less than 80%.

^{42.} Based upon victims for which the sex was known. The sex of 50 victims (or 3%) was not reported.

- Of those victims who received services, 74% were victims of a violent crime. Of these, 35% were victims of sexual
 assault, and just over 6 in 10 (61%) had been the victim of another violent offence, such as physical assault. Of
 the remaining victims of violent offences who received services on May 27, 2010, 2% were secondary victims of
 homicide and 3% were victims of other offences causing death.
- Among the victims of sexual assault in British Columbia who received assistance on May 27, 2010, 29% said
 that they had been victimized by a current or former spouse or intimate partner, and 31% reported having been
 victimized by another family member. The other 40% of victims said they had been sexually assaulted by a
 non-family member such as a friend, an acquaintance or a stranger.
- Of those who reported being the victim of other violent offences,⁴³ 70% reported being victimized by their current
 or former spouse or intimate partner. In addition, 10% stated that they had been victimized by another family
 member and 20% indicated they had been victimized by another person such as a friend, an acquaintance or a
 stranger.

Table 11
Number of clients served by victim service agencies, by sex of victim and type of crime, British Columbia, May 27, 2010

Type of offence	Sex of victim								
	Female		Male		Unknown		Total		
	number	percent	number	percent	number	percent	number	percent	
Violent offences	899	79	276	64	20	42	1,195	74	
Homicide	10	1	6	1	3	6	[^] 19	1	
Other offences causing death 1	23	2	14	3	0	0	37	2	
Sexual assault	324	28	83	19	7	15	414	26	
by spouse, ex-spouse, intimate									
partner	107	9	13	3	0	0	120	7	
by other family member	100	9	27	6	0	0	127	8	
by other relationship	117	10	43	10	7	15	167	10	
Other violent offences 2	542	48	173	40	10	21	725	45	
by spouse, ex-spouse, intimate									
partner	448	39	54	13	5	10	507	31	
by other family member	31	3	41	10	0	0	72	4	
by other relationship	63	6	78	18	5	10	146	9	
Other types of incidents	238	21	152	36	28	58	418	26	
Non-violent offences 3	74	7	38	9	6	13	118	7	
Impaired driving	3	0	8	2	0	0	11	1	
Other traffic offences	6	1	7	2	5	10	18	1	
Non-criminal incidents	134	12	55	13	15	31	204	13	
Traffic incidents - undetermined									
if criminal	7	1	8	2	0	0	15	1	
Other incidents - undetermined									
if criminal	14	1	36	8	2	4	52	3	
Unknown type of crime	19		13		2	•••	34		
Total	1,156	100	441	100	50	100	1,647	100	

^{1.} Other offences causing death includes impaired driving causing death, dangerous operation of a vehicle causing death, criminal negligence causing death and infanticide.

3. Non-violent offences includes property crimes and other non-violent *Criminal Code* offences.

Note(s): Percentages may not add to 100% due to rounding.

^{2.} Other violent offences includes crimes that either cause or threaten to cause harm to an individual.

^{43.} The relationship between the victim and the perpetrator was not collected for homicide and other offences causing death.

Fact Sheet - Yukon⁴⁴

Profile of victim service providers in 2009/2010

- From April 1, 2009 to March 31, 2010, there were five victim service providers operating in Yukon. Among the four victim service providers who participated in the survey, three were system-based, and one was court-based.
- The victim service providers in Yukon that provided information for 2009/2010 reported that they had assisted 1,771 primary and secondary victims of crime.⁴⁵
- The types of assistance provided throughout 2009/2010 by 100% of victim service providers in Yukon included: victim/witness preparation, basic needs provision (e.g., food, clothing), and emotional support (all at 100%).
- In 2009/2010, three-quarters of the victim service providers in Yukon indicated that they offered dedicated programs to specific groups of victims. The most frequently reported groups for which dedicated programs were provided included: persons with physical disabilities, persons with mental disabilities, Aboriginal persons, adults, and children and youth (all at 75%).
- Of the victim service providers in Yukon for which information was available in 2009/2010, all reported involvement in the delivery or coordination of restorative justice processes for criminal justice matters. In addition, three-quarters reported offering accompaniment and support for restorative justice or mediation measures.
- In addition to being able to serve clients in English (100%) and French (100%), victim service providers in Yukon who responded to the survey were able to communicate verbally with clients in German (75%).
- All of the victim service providers were able to accommodate clients with reduced mobility. In addition, one
 provider reported being able to provide services to people with hearing impairments, and there were no providers
 able to accommodate clients with visual impairments.⁴⁶
- From April 1, 2009 to March 31, 2010, 4 victim service providers in Yukon reported employing the equivalent of 7 paid full-time staff. There were no victim service providers in Yukon that indicated having used the services of volunteers throughout the year.
- In 2009/2010, three-quarters (75%) of victim service providers in Yukon served areas considered to be areas that
 include small towns, villages and other populated places with less than 1,000 populations. In addition, half served
 areas that have minimum population concentrations of 1,000.

Profile of victims on May 27, 2010

• On May 27, 2010, the 4 victim service providers in Yukon reported serving 33 people (Table 12). Of these, 88% were female and 12% were male.

^{44.} Detailed information on those served by victim service providers in Yukon has been suppressed to meet the confidentiality requirements of the Statistics Act.

^{45.} The overall response rate for Yukon was 80%. Response rates for individual questions for the Yukon will only be noted if less than 80%.

^{46.} The response rate for this question was 75%.

Table 12 Number of clients served by victim service agencies, by sex of victim and type of crime, Yukon, May 27, 2010

Type of offence	Sex of victim								
	Female		Male		Unknown		Total		
	number	percent	number	percent	number	percent	number	percent	
Violent offences	29	100	0	0	0	0	29	88	
Homicide	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
Other offences causing death 1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
Sexual assault	7	24	0	0	0	0	7	21	
Other violent offences 2	22	76	4	100	0	0	26	79	
Other types of incidents	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
Non-violent offences 3	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
Impaired driving	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
Other traffic offences	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
Non-criminal incidents Traffic incidents - undetermined	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
if criminal Other incidents - undetermined	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
if criminal	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
Unknown type of crime	0		0		0		0		
Total	29	100	4	100	0	0	33	100	

^{1.} Other offences causing death includes impaired driving causing death, dangerous operation of a vehicle causing death, criminal negligence causing death and infanticide.

2. Other violent offences includes crimes that either cause or threaten to cause harm to an individual.

^{3.} Non-violent offences includes property crimes and other non-violent Criminal Code offences.

Fact Sheet - Northwest Territories⁴⁷

Profile of victim service providers in 2009/2010

- From April 1, 2009 to March 31, 2010, there were eight victim service providers operating in the Northwest Territories. Among the two victim service providers who participated in the 2009/2010 survey, one was court-based and one was community-based. In addition to these service providers, there was one financial benefit program administered by the territory.⁴⁸
- The types of assistance provided throughout 2009/2010 by both victim service providers in Northwest Territories included: emergency shelter/housing, assistance with victim impact statements, and prevention training.
- In 2009/2010, both victim service providers in Northwest Territories that responded to the survey indicated that they offered dedicated programs to specific groups of victims. The most frequently reported groups for which dedicated programs were provided included: adults (100%), seniors (50%), and Aboriginal persons (50%).
- Of the two service providers in the Northwest Territories who responded in 2009/2010, one reported involvement
 in the delivery or coordination of restorative justice processes for criminal justice matters. In addition, one victim
 service provider reported offering orientation and information for restorative justice or mediation measures, and
 both reported offering accompaniment and support for restorative justice or mediation measures.
- In addition to being able to serve clients in English, both victim service providers in the Northwest Territories who
 responded to the survey were able to communicate verbally with clients in Inuktitut and an Aboriginal language.
- Of the victim service providers who responded, two were able to accommodate clients with reduced mobility. In addition, one victim service provider reported being able to provide services to people with hearing impairments and one reported being able to accommodate clients with visual impairments.
- From April 1, 2009 to March 31, 2010, the two victim service providers in Northwest Territories reported employing
 the equivalent of 2 paid full-time staff. In addition, one victim service provider indicated having used the services
 of 2 volunteers throughout the year.⁵⁰
- In 2009/2010, one of the victim service providers in Northwest Territories that responded to the survey served areas considered to be areas that include small towns, villages and other populated places with less than 1,000 populations.

^{47.} Detailed information on those served by victim service providers in Northwest Territories has been suppressed to meet the confidentiality requirements of the Statistics Act.

^{48.} The overall response rate for the Northwest Territories was 33%. Response rates for individual questions for the Northwest Territories will only be noted if less than 80%.

^{49.} Unspecified Aboriginal language other than Cree, Inuktitut and Ojibway.

^{50.} The response rate for this question was 50%.

Fact Sheet - Nunavut⁵¹

Profile of victim service providers in 2009/2010

- From April 1, 2009 to March 31, 2010, there were four victim service providers operating in Nunavut.⁵² Among the two victim service providers who participated in the survey, both were community-based.
- The victim service providers in Nunavut that provided information for 2009/2010 reported that 67 victims of crime were assisted.⁵³
- The types of assistance provided throughout 2009/2010 by the two reporting victim service providers in Nunavut included: crisis intervention and response, emotional support and liaising with other agencies on behalf of the client.
- In 2009/2010, there was one victim service provider in Nunavut that indicated it offered dedicated programs to adults, seniors, and children and youth.
- Of the two victim service providers in Nunavut who provided information in 2009/2010, both had staff members
 or volunteers who were able to verbally communicate in English, and half were able to assist victims in Inuktitut.
- There was one victim service provider in Nunavut that reported being able to accommodate clients with visual impairments.
- From April 1, 2009 to March 31, 2010, the two victim service providers in Nunavut that responded to the survey reported employing the equivalent of 4 paid full-time staff. In addition, the two victim service providers indicated having used the services of 2 volunteers throughout the year.
- In 2009/2010, both victim service providers in Nunavut served areas that include small towns, villages and other populated places with less than 1,000 populations.

^{51.} Detailed information on those served by victim service providers in Nunavut has been suppressed to meet the confidentiality requirements of the Statistics Act.

^{52.} The overall response rate for Nunavut was 50%. Response rates for individual questions for Nunavut will only be noted if less than 80%.

^{53.} The response rate for this question was 50%.